### - CERTIFIED PERSONNEL -

# **Hiring**

### **Superintendent's Responsibilities**

All appointments, promotions, and transfers of certified personnel for positions authorized by the Board shall be made by the Superintendent who, at the first meeting following such actions, shall notify the Board of same. Such notification shall be recorded in the Board minutes.

The Superintendent shall determine, pursuant to state law, when vacancies exist and shall post such staff vacancies as necessary to recruit applicants for positions.

When a vacancy occurs, the Superintendent shall notify the Commissioner of Education thirty (30) days before the position is to be filled.

When a vacancy needs to be filled in less than thirty (30) days to prevent disruption of necessary instructional or support services of the school District, the Superintendent may seek a waiver of the thirty (30)-day advance notice requirement from the Commissioner of Education. If the waiver is approved, the appointment shall not be made until the person selected by the Superintendent has been approved by the Commissioner of Education.

#### **Effective Date**

Personnel actions shall not be effective until the employee receives written notice of such action from the Superintendent. Certified employees may be appointed by the Superintendent for any school year at any time after February 1 preceding the beginning of the next school year.

### **QUALIFICATIONS**

The Superintendent shall employ only individuals who are certified for the positions they will hold and who possess qualifications established by law, regulation and Board policy, except in the case where no individual applies who is properly certified and/or who meets established qualifications set by Board policy. In all cases, the most qualified candidate shall be hired.

Hiring of certified personnel who have previously retired under KTRS shall be in compliance with applicable legal requirements.<sup>2</sup>

Teachers of core academic subjects shall be "highly qualified," as defined by state and federal regulation.<sup>3</sup>

### PRE-EMPLOYMENT INQUIRIES

Pre-employment inquiries may include, but are not limited to, requests for licensure/certification, conviction and criminal history records, references, job attendance data, traffic/accident records, and physical examinations, where applicable. Information obtained from pre-employment inquiries concerning an applicant's conviction and criminal history record, toxicology screens, results of job-related competency/skills assessments and other pre-employment inquiry information shall be confidential to the extent permitted by law, but shall be considered in determining employment status.

### - CERTIFIED PERSONNEL -

(CONTINUED)

# **Hiring**

### **Criminal Background Check and Testing**

Applicants, employees, and student teachers assigned within the District shall undergo records checks and testing as required by applicable statutes and regulations.<sup>1</sup>

Each application or renewal form provided to applicants for a certified position shall conspicuously state the following: "FOR THIS TYPE OF EMPLOYMENT, STATE LAW REQUIRES A NATIONAL AND STATE CRIMINAL HISTORY BACKGROUND CHECK AS A CONDITION OF EMPLOYMENT". 1

Employment shall be contingent on receipt of records documenting that the individual does not have a conviction for a sexual offense, a drug offense, a violent offense as defined in KRS 17.165, any felony offense or other conviction determined by the Superintendent to bear a reasonable relationship to the ability of the individual to perform the job. Employment shall terminate on receipt of a criminal history background check documenting a conviction for an offense listed above. Employees shall immediately notify their supervisor if they are arrested for or charged with one of the offenses listed above. The supervisor shall immediately notify employee relations.

#### VACANCIES POSTED

A job register listing vacancies to be filled shall be posted on the District's website.

Vacancies may also be posted and advertised outside the District. All central office administrative positions and all principal positions shall be advertised nationally.

When a vacancy for a teaching position occurs in the District, the Superintendent shall conduct a search to locate minority candidates to be considered for the position.

### **Review of Applications**

Under procedures developed by the Superintendent, each application shall be reviewed. Applications for candidates not employed shall be retained for three (3) years.

References are required on applicants for all positions and will be carefully reviewed as part of the employment decision.

#### RELATIONSHIPS

All applications shall require a response concerning the relationship as defined in KRS 160.180 and KRS 160.380 of each applicant to the Superintendent, other District employees or a Board member. The hiring of relatives of the Superintendent, Board members and principals of the District is subject to the restrictions provided in KRS 160.180 and KRS 160.380.

The Superintendent shall not employ a relative of a Board member as defined in KRS 160.380 unless the relative was initially employed by the District prior to the tenure of the Board member and the member was seated on the Board prior to July 13, 1990.

A relative of the Superintendent shall not be employed except as provided by KRS 160.380.

No employee may use his/her employment status to influence the employment in the District of a relative which is defined as the employee's father, mother, brother, sister, husband, wife, son, daughter, grandparent, aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, mother-in-law, father-in-law, or brother-in-law.

### - CERTIFIED PERSONNEL -

(CONTINUED)

# Hiring

## **RELATIONSHIPS (CONTINUED)**

No employee shall be assigned to a school, office, work group or other unit if the assignment would cause a relative of such employee to be a supervisor of such employee. For purposes of this policy, a supervisor is defined as a person who has authority to oversee and direct work assignments, assign tasks, schedule hours of work, evaluate work performance, or recommend the hiring, discipline or termination of an employee. This policy shall apply even if the status of relative results from a marriage after an initial assignment, or if the supervision authority results from a promotion, reorganization or other administrative action after an initial assignment. It is the responsibility of the employees having the relationship to notify the Human Resources Department as soon as an assignment or employment status covered by this policy exists or may exist. Any failure to give such notice shall result in disciplinary action. The Superintendent shall develop procedures to implement this policy for all personnel assignments and shall make a final determination as to the appropriate action to implement this policy.

### Contract

Except for substitute teachers, all certified personnel shall enter into written contracts with the District.

# **Job Description**

All employees shall receive a copy of their job description and responsibilities.

#### Intent

Under procedures developed by the Superintendent, employees may be requested to indicate their availability for employment for the next school year.

### REASONABLE ASSURANCE OF CONTINUED EMPLOYMENT

Each year all full-time and part-time certified employees shall be notified in writing by the last day of the school year whether they have reasonable assurance of continued employment for the following school year.

Certified employees assigned extra duties such as coaching shall be notified in writing by the last day of that assigned duty if they have reasonable assurance of continued employment in that or a similar capacity for the following school year.

### JOB SHARING

District employees may be permitted to participate in a job sharing program in accordance with procedures established by the Superintendent. However, initial probationary, temporary, seasonal and substitute employees and student workers are not eligible for the job sharing program.

#### **EXCHANGE OF TEACHERS**

The Superintendent may approve the exchange of teachers with other countries, states, and programs outside the District. All arrangements for such exchanges shall adhere to state laws and regulations.

03.11

- CERTIFIED PERSONNEL -

(CONTINUED)

# Hiring

### REFERENCES:

<sup>1</sup>KRS 160.380

<sup>2</sup>KRS 161.605; 702 KAR 001:150

<sup>3</sup>P. L. 107-110 (No Child Left Behind Act of 2001)

34 CFR 200.55-200.56; KRS 17.160, KRS 17.165

KRS 156.106; KRS 160.345; KRS 160.390; KRS 161.042; KRS 161.611

KRS 161.750, KRS 335B.020, KRS 405.435, 704 KAR 007:130

OAG 73-333, OAG 91-10, OAG 91-149, OAG 91-206

OAG 92-1; OAG 92-59, OAG 92-78, OAG 92-131, OAG 97-6

Records Retention/Public School District Schedule

### RELATED POLICIES:

01.11

02.4244

03.132

Adopted/Amended: 11/25/2013

#### - CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL -

# **Hiring**

## Superintendent's Responsibilities

All appointments, promotions, and transfers of classified personnel for positions authorized by the Board shall be made by the Superintendent who, at the first meeting following such actions, shall notify the Board of same. Such notification shall be recorded in the Board minutes.

The Superintendent shall determine, pursuant to state law, when vacancies exist and shall post such staff vacancies as necessary to recruit applicants for positions.

### **Effective Date**

Personnel actions shall not be effective until the employee receives written notice of such action from the Superintendent.

### **PRE-EMPLOYMENT INQUIRIES**

Pre-employment inquiries may include, but are not limited to, requests for licensure/certification, conviction and criminal history records, references, job attendance data, traffic/accident records, and physical examinations. Information obtained from pre-employment inquiries concerning an applicant's conviction and criminal history record, toxicology screens, results of job-related competency/skills assessments and other pre-employment inquiry information shall be confidential to the extent permitted by law, but shall be considered in determining employment status.

### **Criminal Background Check and Testing**

Applicants and employees shall undergo records checks and testing as required by applicable statutes and regulations. 1 & 2

Each application or renewal form provided applicants for a classified position shall conspicuously state the following: "FOR THIS TYPE OF EMPLOYMENT, STATE LAW REQUIRES A STATE CRIMINAL HISTORY BACKGROUND CHECK AS A CONDITION OF EMPLOYMENT. UNDER CERTAIN CIRCUMSTANCES, A NATIONAL CRIMINAL HISTORY BACKGROUND CHECK MAY BE REQUIRED AS A CONDITION OF EMPLOYMENT". <sup>1</sup>

Employment shall be contingent on receipt of records documenting that the individual does not have a conviction for a sexual offense, a drug offense, a violent offense as defined in KRS 17.165, any felony offense or other conviction determined by the Superintendent to bear a reasonable relationship to the ability of the individual to perform the job. Employment shall terminate on receipt of a criminal history background check documenting a conviction for an offense listed above. Employees shall immediately notify their supervisor if they are arrested for or charged with one of the offenses listed above. The supervisor shall immediately notify employee relations.

- CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL -

(CONTINUED)

# Hiring

# **Educational Requirements**

No person shall be initially hired unless s/he holds at least a high school diploma or high school certificate of completion or GED certificate or unless s/he shows progress, as defined by Administrative Regulations of the State Board for Adult, and Technical Education, toward obtaining a certificate of high school equivalency. Employees shall hold the qualifications for the position as established by the Commissioner of Education.<sup>3</sup>

All paraprofessionals shall satisfy educational requirements specified by federal law.<sup>4</sup>

### **VACANCIES POSTED**

A job register listing vacancies to be filled shall be posted on the District's website. Vacancies may also be posted and advertised outside the District.

# **Review of Applications**

Under procedures developed by the Superintendent, each application shall be reviewed. Applications for candidates not employed shall be retained for three (3) years.

References are required on applicants for all positions and will be carefully reviewed as part of the employment decision.

#### RELATIONSHIPS

All applications shall require a response concerning the relationship as defined in <u>KRS 160.180</u> and KRS 160.380 of each applicant to the Superintendent, other District employees or a Board member. The hiring of relatives of the Superintendent, Board members and principals of the District is subject to the restrictions provided in KRS 160.180 and KRS 160.380.

A relative of the Superintendent shall not be employed except as provided by KRS 160.380.1

The Superintendent shall not employ a relative of a Board member as defined in KRS 160.380 unless the relative was initially employed by the District prior to the tenure of the Board member and the member was seated on the Board prior to July 13, 1990.

No employee may use his/her employment status to influence the employment in the Jefferson County School District of a relative which is defined as the employee's father, mother, brother, sister, husband, wife, son, daughter, grandparent, aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, mother-in-law, father-in-law, sister-in-law, or brother-in-law.

No employee shall be assigned to a school, office, work group or other unit if the assignment would cause a relative of such employee to be a supervisor of such employee. For purposes of this policy, a supervisor is defined as a person who has authority to oversee and direct work assignments, assign tasks, schedule hours of work, evaluate work performance, or recommend the hiring, discipline or termination of an employee. This policy shall apply even if the status of relative results from a marriage after an initial assignment, or if the supervision authority results from a promotion, reorganization or other administrative action after an initial assignment. It is the responsibility of the employees having the relationship to notify the Human Resources Department as soon as an assignment or employment status covered by this policy exists or may exist. Any failure to give such notice shall result in disciplinary action. The Superintendent shall develop procedures to implement this policy for all personnel assignments and shall make a final determination as to the appropriate action to implement this policy.

#### - CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL -

(CONTINUED)

# Hiring

### **EMERGENCY HIRING**

The Superintendent shall implement procedures for emergency hiring of staff to prevent disruption of necessary instructional or support services.

# **Job Description**

All employees shall receive a copy of their job description and responsibilities.

#### Contract

The District shall enter into written contracts with all full-time and part-time classified staff.

#### JOB SHARING

District employees may be permitted to participate in a job sharing program in accordance with procedures established by the Superintendent. However, initial probationary, temporary, seasonal and substitute employees and student workers are not eligible for the job sharing program.

# Reasonable Assurance of Continued Employment

Each year, all full-time and part-time classified employees, including substitutes, shall be notified in writing by the last day of the school year whether they have reasonable assurance of continued employment for the following school year.

Classified employees assigned extra duties such as coaching shall be notified in writing by the last day of that assigned duty if they have reasonable assurance of continued employment in that or a similar capacity for the following school year.

### REFERENCES:

<sup>1</sup>KRS 160.380

<sup>2</sup>702 KAR 005:080

<sup>3</sup>KRS 161.011

<sup>4</sup>P. L. 107-110 (No Child Left Behind Act of 2001)

34 CFR 200.58-200.59

KRS 17.160, KRS 17.165; KRS 156.070

KRS 160.345; KRS 160.390; KRS 335B.020; KRS 405.435

OAG 91-10, OAG 91-149, OAG 91-206

OAG 92-1, OAG 92-59, OAG 92-78, OAG 92-131, OAG 97-6

Kentucky Local District Classification Plan; 785 KAR 001:110

Records Retention/Public School District Schedule

### RELATED POLICIES:

01.11, 02.4244, 03.232, 03.27, 03.5, 06.221

Adopted/Amended: 11/25/2013

### - CERTIFIED PERSONNEL -

# **Assignment**

The assignment of all certified personnel shall be made by the Superintendent and shall be made in accordance with state law, Kentucky Administrative Regulations, and/or other legal agreements. The Superintendent shall make all appointments, promotions, and transfers of certified personnel for positions authorized by the Board and, at the first meeting following the actions, shall notify the Board of same. Such notification shall be recorded in the Board minutes. The Superintendent may designate Human Resources to provide notice of assignment. No personnel action shall be effective prior to receipt of written notice of the action by the affected employee from the Superintendent.

The Superintendent shall assign personnel who are certified for the positions they will hold and who possess qualifications established by Board policy, except in the case where no individual applies who is properly certified and/or who meets qualifications set by Board policy.

The Superintendent shall not assign the relative of a school Principal to the school where the Principal is assigned unless the relative is not the spouse and was employed in that school during the 1989-90 school year. No spouse of a Principal shall be assigned to the school where the Principal is assigned unless the spouse was assigned in that school during the 1989-90 school year and there is no other position in the District for which the spouse is certified. A Principal's spouse employed in the Principal's school shall be evaluated by another school administrator.

No employee shall be assigned to a school, office, work group or other unit if the assignment would cause a relative of such employee to be a supervisor of such employee. For purposes of this policy, a relative is defined as the employee's father, mother, brother, sister, husband, wife, son, daughter, grandparent, aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, mother-in-law, father-in-law, sister-in-law, or brother-in-law. For purposes of this policy, a supervisor is defined as a person who has authority to oversee and direct work assignments, assign tasks, schedule hours of work, evaluate work performance, or recommend the hiring, discipline or termination of an employee. This policy shall apply even if the status of relative results from a marriage after an initial assignment, or if the supervision authority results from a promotion, reorganization or other administrative action after an initial assignment. It is the responsibility of the employees having the relationship to notify the Human Resources Department as soon as an assignment or employment status covered by this policy exists or may exist. Any failure to give such notice shall result in disciplinary action. The Superintendent shall develop procedures to implement this policy for all personnel assignments and shall make a final determination as to the appropriate action to implement this policy.

The Superintendent shall provide for an orientation and/or workshop before the employee assumes the new responsibilities.

The Superintendent shall not assign a certified employee to an alternative education program as defined in KRS 160.380 as part of any disciplinary action pursuant to KRS 161.790 or as part of a corrective action plan established pursuant to the District's evaluation plan.

### - CERTIFIED PERSONNEL -

# **Assignment**

# REFERENCES:

<sup>1</sup>KRS 160.380; OAG 76-360 KRS 156.095; KRS 158.060 KRS 160.345; KRS 160.390 KRS 161.760; KRS 161.790 OAG 11-001; OAG 78-266; OAG 91-28; OAG 91-149 OAG 92-1; OAG 92-135

# RELATED POLICY:

02.4244

Adopted/Amended: 11/25/2013

### - CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL -

# **Assignment**

The assignment of all classified personnel shall be made by the Superintendent and shall be made in accordance with state law, Kentucky Administrative Regulations, and/or other legal agreements. The Superintendent shall make all appointments, promotions, and transfers of classified personnel for positions authorized by the Board and, at the first meeting following the actions, shall notify the Board of same. Such notification shall be recorded in the Board minutes. The Superintendent may designate Human Resources to provide notice of assignment. No personnel action shall be effective prior to receipt of written notice of the action by the affected employee from the Superintendent.

The Superintendent shall assign personnel only in positions for which they are qualified.

The Superintendent shall not assign the relative of a school Principal to the school where the Principal is assigned unless the relative is not the spouse and was employed in that school during the 1989-90 school year. No spouse of a Principal shall be assigned to the school where the Principal is assigned unless the spouse was employed in the 1989-1990 school year and the District has no more than one (1) elementary school, one (1) middle school, and one (1) high school. A Principal's spouse employed in the Principal's school shall be evaluated by another school administrator. \(^1\)

No employee shall be assigned to a school, office, work group or other unit if the assignment would cause a relative of such employee to be a supervisor of such employee. For purposes of this policy, a relative is defined as the employee's father, mother, brother, sister, husband, wife, son, daughter, grandparent, aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, mother-in-law, father-in-law, sister-in-law, or brother-in-law. For purposes of this policy, a supervisor is defined as a person who has authority to oversee and direct work assignments, assign tasks, schedule hours of work, evaluate work performance, or recommend the hiring, discipline or termination of an employee. This policy shall apply even if the status of relative results from a marriage after an initial assignment, or if the supervision authority results from a promotion, reorganization or other administrative action after an initial assignment. It is the responsibility of the employees having the relationship to notify the Human Resources Department as soon as an assignment or employment status covered by this policy exists or may exist. Any failure to give such notice shall result in disciplinary action. The Superintendent shall develop procedures to implement this policy for all personnel assignments and shall make a final determination as to the appropriate action to implement this policy.

The Superintendent shall provide for an orientation and/or workshop before the employee assumes the new responsibilities.

All assignments of employees shall be made in accordance with state law, Kentucky Administrative Regulations, and/or other legal agreements.

The Superintendent shall not assign a classified employee to an alternative education program as defined in KRS 160.380 as part of any disciplinary action pursuant to KRS 161.011 or as part of a corrective action plan established pursuant to the District's evaluation plan.

03.231 (Continued)

# - CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL -

# **Assignment**

# REFERENCES:

<sup>1</sup>KRS 160.380 KRS 160.390 KRS 161.011 OAG 91-28 OAG 92-1 OAG 92-135

Adopted/Amended: 11/25/2013 Order #: 2013-191

### - CERTIFIED PERSONNEL -

# Discipline/Nonrenewal/Resignation by Employee

#### TERMINATION AND NONRENEWAL

The Superintendent shall exercise his/her power and authority to terminate or non-renew any employment contract in accordance with the limits set by law. The Principal/immediate supervisor shall provide the Superintendent with notice of recommended nonrenewals by March 15. Non-renewal of limited contracts of certified personnel shall be made no later than May 15, in compliance with the requirements of KRS 161.750. The Superintendent shall, at the first meeting following the actions, notify the Board of terminations or non-renewals. Such notification shall be recorded in the Board minutes. No personnel action shall be effective prior to receipt of written notice of the action by the affected employee from the Superintendent.

The termination of certified employment contracts shall be governed by the provisions of <u>KRS</u> 161.790. A certified employee may be terminated for the following reasons:

- 1. Insubordination;
- 2. Immoral character or conduct unbecoming a teacher which may include being convicted of or entering an "Alford" plea, a guilty plea or plea of nolo contendere to crimes including, but not limited to sexual misconduct, drugs, alcohol, violent crime, illegal transaction with a minor or any felony offense;
- 3. Physical or mental disability; or
- 4. Inefficiency, incompetency, or neglect of duty.

Prior to notification of the Board, the Superintendent shall furnish the teacher with a written statement specifying in detail the charge against the teacher.<sup>1</sup>

The Superintendent shall develop procedures to afford employees due process as required by law.

# Other Disciplinary Action

The Superintendent may suspend a certified employee without pay. Such suspension shall not be effective prior to receipt of written notice of the action by the employee from the Superintendent. At the first meeting following the action, the Superintendent shall notify the Board of the action taken.<sup>2</sup> An employee may also be issued a public or private reprimand.

### RESIGNATION

In compliance with <u>KRS 161.780</u>, the Superintendent may accept resignations submitted to the District by its employees. This action by the Superintendent shall be subject only to notification of the Board.

### - CERTIFIED PERSONNEL -

(CONTINUED)

# Discipline/Nonrenewal/Resignation by Employee

#### **CODE OF ETHICS**

The Professional Code of Ethics for Kentucky School Certified Personnel provides that:

Section 1. Certified personnel in the Commonwealth:

- 1. Shall strive toward excellence, recognize the importance of the pursuit of truth, nurture democratic citizenship, and safeguard the freedom to learn and to teach;
- 2. Shall believe in the worth and dignity of each human being and in educational opportunities for all;
- 3. Shall strive to uphold the responsibilities of the education profession, including the following obligations to students, to parents, and to the education profession:
- (a) To students:
- 1. Shall provide students with professional education services in a nondiscriminatory manner and in consonance with accepted best practice known to the educator;
- 2. Shall respect the constitutional rights of all students;
- 3. Shall take reasonable measures to protect the health, safety, and emotional well-being of students:
- 4. Shall not use professional relationships or authority with students for personal advantage;
- 5. Shall keep in confidence information about students which has been obtained in the course of professional service, unless disclosure serves professional purposes or is required by law:
- 6. Shall not knowingly make false or malicious statements about students or colleagues;
- 7. Shall refrain from subjecting students to embarrassment or disparagement; and
- 8. Shall not engage in any sexually related behavior with a student with or without consent, but shall maintain a professional approach with students. Sexually related behavior shall include such behaviors as sexual jokes; sexual remarks; sexual kidding or teasing; sexual innuendo; pressure for dates or sexual favors; inappropriate physical touching, kissing, or grabbing; rape; threats of physical harm; and sexual assault.
- (b) To parents:
- 1. Shall make reasonable effort to communicate to parents information which should be revealed in the interest of the student:
- 2. Shall endeavor to understand community cultures and diverse home environments of students:
- 3. Shall not knowingly distort or misrepresent facts concerning educational issues;
- 4. Shall distinguish between personal views and the views of the employing educational agency;
- 5. Shall not interfere in the exercise of political and citizenship rights and responsibilities of others:
- 6. Shall not use institutional privileges for private gain, for the promotion of political candidates, or for partisan political activities; and
- 7. Shall not accept gratuities, gifts, or favors that might impair or appear to impair professional judgment, and shall not offer any of these to obtain special advantage.

### - CERTIFIED PERSONNEL -

(CONTINUED)

## (c) To the education profession:

- 1. Shall exemplify behaviors which maintain the dignity and integrity of the profession;
- 2. Shall accord just and equitable treatment to all members of the profession in the exercise of their professional rights and responsibilities;
- 3. Shall keep in confidence information acquired about colleagues in the course of employment, unless disclosure serves professional purposes or is required by law;
- 4. Shall not use coercive means or give special treatment in order to influence professional decisions;
- 5. Shall apply for, accept, offer, or assign a position or responsibility only on the basis of professional preparation and legal qualifications; and
- 6. Shall not knowingly falsify or misrepresent records of facts relating to the educator's own qualifications or those of other professionals.

Section 2. Violation of this administrative regulation may result in cause to initiate proceedings for revocation or suspension of Kentucky certification as provided in KRS 161.120 and 704 KAR 20:585.<sup>3</sup>

Employees who violate provisions of the Professional Code of Ethics for Kentucky School Certified Personnel may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

### Reports to EPSB

The Superintendent shall comply with the reporting requirements of KRS 161.120.

### REFERENCES:

KRS 161.790

<sup>2</sup>KRS 160.390

<sup>3</sup>16 KAR 1:020

KRS 161.120; KRS 161.750; KRS 161.780

Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act

701 KAR 005:090

OAG 83-362; OAG 92-135

### RELATED POLICY:

03.172

Adopted/Amended: 11/25/2013

#### - CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL -

# Discipline, Suspension and Dismissal of Classified Employees

#### **DISCIPLINARY OPTIONS**

Classified employees may be subject to the following actions, to include, but not limited to:

- 1. Oral warning or reprimand by Superintendent/designee
- 2. Written warning or private reprimand by Superintendent/designee
- 3. Disciplinary probation status imposed by Superintendent/designee
- 4. Reassignment (temporary or permanent) by Superintendent
- 5. Public reprimand by Superintendent/designee
- 6. Suspension without pay by Superintendent
- 7. Nonrenewal by Superintendent
- 8. Dismissal (termination of contract) by Superintendent

The Superintendent may terminate a classified employment contract pursuant to the provisions of KRS 161.011.

### ACTIONS WHICH MAY REQUIRE HEARING PROCEDURES

The Superintendent may suspend without pay or terminate a classified employee. Subject to the employee's exercise of applicable hearing rights, these personnel actions shall be effective on the employee's receipt of written notice from the Superintendent. The Superintendent shall notify the Board at the first meeting following a reassignment, suspension without pay, nonrenewal or termination and such notification shall be recorded in the Board minutes. An employee may also be issued a public or private reprimand.

### **CAUSES FOR ACTION**

Any classified employee may be subject to appropriate disciplinary action for one (1) or more of the following reasons:

- 1. Dishonesty, neglect of duty, incompetence, inefficiency or insubordination.
- 2. Reporting to work under the influence of or use or possession of alcohol or controlled substances while on duty, or the illegal use or possession of controlled substances at any time.
- 3. Unsatisfactory evaluation of any factor on the employee's performance evaluation report.
- 4. Repeated unexcused absence, tardiness, absence without notification or abuse of sick leave.
- 5. Violation of or refusal to obey local policies or state regulations adopted by the Kentucky Board of Education or by the Board.
- 6. Refusal to comply with safety directives.
- 7. Falsifying information supplied to the District including information on application forms, absence reports, or any other information.

### - CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL -

(CONTINUED)

# Discipline, Suspension and Dismissal of Classified Employees

# **CAUSES FOR ACTION (CONTINUED)**

- 8. Violation of local policy, state, or federal statutes or regulations that apply to assigned duties.
- 9. Being convicted of or entering an "Alford" plea, guilty plea or plea of nolo contendere to crimes including, but not limited to, sexual misconduct, drugs, alcohol, violent crime, illegal transaction with a minor or any felony offense.
- 10. Immorality, misconduct, or conduct unbecoming a school employee.
- 11. Loss of licensure or certification required for the position.
- 12. Failure to maintain the confidentiality of information about students or staff obtained in the course of employment, unless disclosure serves a legitimate job-related purpose or is required by law.
- 13. Engaging in any sexually related behavior with a student with or without consent including, but not limited to, behavior such as sexual jokes; sexual remarks; sexual kidding or teasing; sexual innuendo; pressure for dates or sexual favors; inappropriate physical touching, kissing, or grabbing; rape, threats of physical harm; and sexual assault.
- 14. Physical or mental disability, consistent with applicable laws protecting employees with disabilities.<sup>1</sup>

### **DUE PROCESS PROVISIONS**

Negotiated agreements with recognized employee organizations shall provide due process procedures. The Superintendent shall develop due process procedures for employees exempt from representation.

### REFERENCES:

<sup>1</sup>Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 as amended by the ADA Amendments Act of 2008 42 U.S.C. Section 12111 et seq.; KRS Chapter 344

KRS 160.380; KRS 160.390; KRS 161.011 OAG 76-290; OAG 92-135, OAG 96-3, OAG 05-006

Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act

### RELATED POLICIES:

03.23251

03.26

03.271

03.2711

07.162

Adopted/Amended: 11/25/2013

### - CERTIFIED PERSONNEL -

# **Staff Meetings and Professional Development**

The Board expects all employees to participate in meetings or activities designed to increase their skills and competencies or to contribute to their professional growth.

### **STAFF ORIENTATION**

The District shall provide orientation for all new and/or selected personnel at the beginning of the school year. The orientation shall provide information and activities to enhance effective job performance. Orientation may be held at other times as necessary.

### PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM TO BE PROVIDED

The Board shall provide for its instructional and administrative staff an efficient, systematic and high-quality professional development (PD) program that meets the goals established in KRS 158.6451 and in the local needs assessment. At the direction of the Superintendent or designee and in conjunction with each school, the PD coordinator shall facilitate the development and implementation of this program for all certified employees. Programs may also include classified staff and parent members of school councils and committees.

The PD program for the District and each school shall be incorporated into the school/District improvement plan. Prior to the implementation of the program, the school PD plan shall be made public, and the District PD plan shall be posted to the District web site.

### **DISTRICT-WIDE PLAN**

The program shall be based on a Board-approved PD plan for the District, which is designed (1) to help achieve student capacities established by <u>KRS 158.645</u> and goals established by <u>KRS 158.6451</u>; (2) to support the District's mission, goals and assessed needs; and (3) to increase teachers' understanding of curriculum content and methods of instruction appropriate for each content area based on individual school plans. The PD plan shall reflect individual needs of schools and shall be aligned with the school/District improvement plan and teacher growth plans.

#### SCHOOL RESPONSIBILITIES

Each school shall plan high quality professional development experiences with the PD coordinator and, when appropriate, with other schools to maximize training opportunities.

### **DOCUMENTATION**

The school/District PD plan shall include the method for evaluating each professional development experience for its impact on student learning and using evaluation results to for improveing professional development initiatives learning.

Documentation of completed professional development experiences, including a written evaluation, shall be required. Unless an employee is granted leave under an appropriate Board policy, failure to complete and document the required hours of professional development during the academic year shall result in a reduction in salary and may be reflected in the employee's evaluation.

03.19

(CONTINUED)

# Staff Meetings and Professional Development

# REFERENCES:

704 KAR 003:035

704 KAR 003:325

KRS 156.095

KRS 156.553

KRS 158.070

KRS 158.654; KRS 158.6451

KRS 160.345

# **RELATED POLICY:**

03.1911

Adopted/Amended: 11/25/2013